UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 8
1595 Wynkoop Street
Denver, CO 80202-1129
Phone 800-227-8917
www.epa.gov/region8

JuL 27 2017

Ref: SENF-W-WO

CERTIFIED MAIL #7012 2210 0000 5367 5487
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Mr. James Parkman
600 Lilley Yeager Loop North
Cleveland, Texas 77328

Re: Administrative Order on Consent
Dear Mr. Parkman;

Enclosed please find a copy of the fully executed administrative order on consent (AOC) to address
unresolved violations of the Clean Water Act caused by alleged unauthorized discharges of dredged and
fill material to waters of the United States by Michael F. Gard, Richard P. Gard and Professional Home
Design, Inc. The discharges occurred to property consisting of lots 21 and 22 of the River Park
Subdivision located in the southeast quarter of the southwest quarter of Section 24, Township 41 North,
Range 106 West, Fremont County, Wyoming. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency has the
authority to issue this AOC under section 309(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(a).

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 303-312-6359. I am available to assist you
and answer questions as you satisfy the terms of the AOC. If you are represented by an attorney who has
questions, please ask the attorney to contact Peggy Livingston, Senior Enforcement Attorney, at
303-312-6858. We appreciate your cooperation in working to resolve this matter.

Sincerely, (//

Office of Enforcement, Compliance
and Environmental Justice

Enclosure

cc: Richard Chong, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (via email)
Mike Happold, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (via email)
Brian Remlinger, Alder Environmental, LLC (via email)
Paige Wolken, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (via email)



UNITED STATES
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 8

IN THE MATTER OF: )

)
James Parkman ) ADMINISTrA11VE UL
600 Lilley Yeager Loop North ) ON CONSENT
Cleveland, Texas 77328 )

)
Respondent. ) Docket No. CHA-08-2017-0019

)

I. INTRODUCTION

1. This Administrative Order on Consent (Consent Order) is entered into voluntarily by the United

States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and James Parkman (Respondent). This Consent Order
concerns the implementation of restoration activities to address unresolved environmental damage
caused by alleged unauthorized discharges of dredged and | material to waters of the United States by
Michael F. Gard and Richard P. Gard (the Gards) and Professional Home Design, Inc., named
respondents in an administrative order for compliance previously issued by the EPA. The discharges
occurred to property consisting of lots 21 and 22 of the River Park Subdivision (the Site) located in the .
southeast quarter of the southwest quarter of Section 24, Township 41 North, Range 106 West, Fremont

County, Wyoming.
II. STATUTORY AUTHORITY

2. This Consent Order is issued under section 309(a) of the Clean Water Act (CWA), 33 U.S.C.
§ 1319(a). This Consent Order is based on the following findings of violation of section 301(a) of the
CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a), which, among other things, prohibits the discharge of pollutants into waters

of the United States except as in compliance with section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344.



II1. PARTIES BOUND

3. This Consent Order shall apply to and be binding upon the EPA and upon Respondent and
Respondent’s agents, successors and assigns. Each signatory to this Consent Order certifies that he or
she is authorized to execute and legally bind the party he or she represents to this Consent Order. No
change in ownership of the Site or legal status of Respondent shall alter Respondent’s responsibilities
under this Consent Order unless the EPA, Respondent and the transferee agree in writing to allow the
transferee to assume such responsibilities. Additionally, no later than thirty (30) calendar days prior to
such transfer, Respondent shall notify the EPA at the address specified in paragraph 44, below.

IV. STATEMENT OF THE PARTIES

4. The following FINDINGS OF FACT AND OF VIOLATION are made solely by the EPA. In
signing this Consent Order, Respondent neither admits nor denies the FINDINGS OF FACT AND OF
VIOLATION. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in order to provide for resolution of the alleged CWA
violations at the Site and without acknowledging any liability, Respondent consents to the issuance of
this Consent Order and agrees to abide by all of its conditions. Respondent waives any and all remedies,
claims for relief and otherwise available rights to judicial or administrative review that Respondent may
have with respect to any issue of fact or law set forth in this Consent Order, including any right of
judicial review under the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. §§ 701-706. Respondent further agrees
not to challenge the jurisdiction of the EPA or the FINDINGS OF FACT AND OF VIOLATION below
in any proceeding to enforce this Consent Order or in any action under this Consent Order.

5. The parties desire to enter into this Consent Order for a restoration plan pursuant to which
Respondent would implement restoration activities, as described below, for previous impacts to

0.81 acre of wetlands at the Site in exchange for which the EPA agrees not to pursue any other civil

enforcement action against Respondent relating to these previous CWA violations, outside of enforcing

this Consent Order.
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V. FINDINGS OF FACT AND OF VIOLATION

6. Professional Home Design, Inc. (PHD) is a corporation incorporated under the laws of the State
of Wyoming. The address of the registered office for PHD is 202 South 2" Street East, Riverton,
Wyoming 82501, Its registered agent at that address is Richard P. Gard.

7. Michael F. Gard, doing business as Gard Enterprises, is an individual. At all relevant times, he
has been the president of PHD,

8. Richard P. Gard, doing business as Gard Enterprises, is an individual. At all relevant times, he
has been the vice president of PHD.

9. Respondent, James Parkman, is an individual with a mailing address of 600 Lilley Yeager Loop
North, Cleveland, Texas 77328.

10. Respondent has expressed an interest in purchasing the Site, which is currently owned,
controlled,. managed and/or operated by PHD and the Gards.

11.  The Wind River flows adjacent to wetlands at the Site. The Wind River is, and was at all relevant
times, a navigable-in-fact water. The Wind River is tributary to the Big Horn River, which is tributary to
the Yellowstone River, which is tributary to the Missouri River. The Big Horn River, Yellowstone River
and Missouri River are, and were at all relevant times, navigable interstate waters. Furthermore, the
United States Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) has determined that the Wind River is a traditional
navigable water.

12. Between the first week of June 2008 and April 8, 2009, approximately 0.81 acre of wetlands waé
partially drained, excavated and filled at the Site. The work was reportedly done for the purpose of
developing two lots for the future construction of two homes for the Gards.

13. On April 2, 2009, the Corps received a report of a developer clearing and draining wetlands at

the Site. The caller identified the contractor doing the work as PHD. The Corps had received a similar

report from a different source the previous week.
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14. On April 7, 2009, the Corps spoke with Michael F. Gard, who told the Corps that the work at the
Site entailed draining and filling the property. Mr. Gard indicated that two pads had been constructed in
preparation for building two cabins. The Corps told Mr. Gard that, based on recent discussions with
local, state and federal agencies, as well as information Mr. Gard provided, the work was likely being
done in wetlands and could be in violation of the CWA. The Corps advised Mr. Gard to discontinue
work until the Corps could conduct a site inspection.

[5. On April 22, 2009, the Corps inspected the Site and found that PHD and the Gards had
discharged or allowed the discharge of dredged and fill material to 0.68 acre of wetlands adjacent to the
Wind River. Specifically, the Corps found that two trenches, each three to four feet deep and 60 feet
long, had been cut in the wetlands in June 2008 to determine the groundwater level on the property,
resulting in the discharge of sidecast material to the wetlands. In March 2009, four perforated drain
pipes had been installed, which involved the excavation and filling of two new trenches through the
wetlands. Within the wetlands, offsite material was used to construct the building pad and access road,
and additional material was stockpiled. These activities resulted in 0.68 acre of wetlands filled. Surface
material excavated from wetlands at the Site and used as base fill for the building pad and access road
resulted in additional unauthorized impacts to another 0.13 acre of wetlands at the Site.

16. On May &, 2009, via a certified mail, return receipt letter addressed to Mr. Michael Gard, Gard
Enterprises, the Corps issued a cease and desist order directing “Gard Enterprises and any other parties
responsible for these unauthorized activities . . . to cease and desist any further earth moving activities at
the property in the vicinity of the Wind River.” The Corps’ letter indicated that the case had been
referred to the EPA.

17. On December 22, 2009, the EPA issued an Administrative Order for Compliance (AO), Docket
No. CWA-08-2010-0003, to PHD and the Gards to address the alleged violations that are the subject of
this Consent Order. The AO directed PHD and the Gards to prepare a restoration or mitigation plan and,
following the EPA’s approval of that plan, to implement it.
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18. On May 14, 2010, a consultant for the Gards submitted a draft restoration and mitigation plan to
the EPA for comment. Three subsequent drafts were submitted to the EPA between May 24, 2011, and
January 30, 2013. The EPA approved the final submittal on March 27, 2013,

19. During 2013, the Gards experienced significant delays in initiating restoration and mitigation
activities due to difficulties securing a third party to manage the 3.71-acre conservation easement that
was a component of the approved restoration and mitigation plan. As a result, the Gards requested that
restoration and mitigation activities be postponed until 2014. Additional delays ensued and on
September 30, 2014, the EPA provided written confirmation to the Gards’ consultant that it did not
object to the Gards moving forward with restoration and mitigation activities at the Site without having
yet secured a third party to manage the conservation easement.

20. On November 24, 2014, the Corps provided written confirmation to the Gards that the proposed
restoration and mitigation activities were authorized by Nationwide Permit 27 for Aquatic Habitat
Restoration, Establishment, and Enhancement Activities. On January 14, 2015, the Gards’ consultant
notified the EPA that the Gards were ready to begin restoration activities.

21. On October 6, 2015, the EPA was contacted by a consultant representing a prospective buyer of
the Site. On December 8, 2015, the Gards’ consultant indicated to the EPA that he was unaware of any
plans to sell the Site and that the current plan was to initiate restoration activities in 2016. On
December 15, 2015, the Gards’ consultant confirmed in writing that restoration was scheduled for early
spring of 2016, following snowmelt.

22. On September 6, 2016, a real estate agent notified the EPA that he had a client interested in
purchasing the Site. He noted that his client was aware of the unresolved CWA violations at the Site and
had obtained cost estimates for implementing the restoration and mitigation activities. The client was

reportedly interested in voluntarily restoring the Site and placing deed restrictions on it.
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23. On January 17, 2017, Respondent’s consultant submitted a draft plan for restoration of the Site to
the EPA. At EPA’s request, revisions were made to the draft plan and submitted on February 7, March 3
and April 10 of 2017.

24. The Site includes wetlands adjacent to the Wind River. These wetlands are waters of the United
States. The wetlands at the Site have a continuous surface éonnection with the Wind River.

25. The discharges described in paragraphs 14 and 15, above, resulted in the direct elimination of
0.81 acre of wetlands and the dewatering of an unknown amount of additional wetlands adjacent to the
Wind River. The wetlands provided various functions and values such as water quality improvement,
wildlife habitat, groundwater recharge, flood attenuation and aesthetics.

26. The activities described in paragraphs 14 and 15, above, were performed using common
earthmoving vehicles and equipment.

27. PHD and the Gards are each a “person” as defined in section 502(5) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C.

§ 1362(5).

28. The material discharged at the Site and described in paragraphs 14 and 15, above, is and was at
all relevant times “dredged material” or “fill material” as defined in 33 C.F.R. § 323.2(c) or 33 C.F.R.

§ 323.2(e), respectively, and “pollutants” as defined in section 502(6) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(6).
29. The vehicles and equipment referenced in paragraph 26, above, are and were at all relevant times
each a “point source” as defined in section 502(14) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14).

30. The Wind River and its adjacent wetlands at the Site, referenced in paragraphs 11, 15, 24 and 25,
above, are and were at all relevant times “waters of the United States” as defined in 33 C.F.R. § 328.3(a)
and therefore “navigable waters” as defined in section 502(7) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7).

31. The placement of dredged and fill material into wetlands adjacent to the Wind River constitutes

the “discharge of pollutants™ as defined in section 502(12) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(12).
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32. Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a), prohibits, among other things, the discharge of
pollutants by any person into waters of the United States except as in compliance with section 404 of the
CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344(a).

33. Section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, sets forth a permitting system authorizing the
Secretary of the Army, acting through the Chief of Engineers of the Corps, to issue permits for the
discharge of dredged or fill material into navigable waters, which are defined as waters of the United
States.

34. According to 33 C.F.R. § 323.3(a), a permit issued by the Corps is required for the discharge of
dredged or fill material into waters of the United States unless an exemption pursuant to 33 C.F.R.

§ 323.4 applies.

35. PHD and the Gards are not and never have been authorized by a permit issued pursuant to
section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, to conduct any of the activities described in paragraphs 14
and 15, above.

36. The activities conducted by PHD and the Gards, and/or by persons acting on their behalf, as
described in paragraphs 14 and 15, above, violate section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a). Each
discharge of pollutants from a point source by PHD and the Gards into waters of the United States
without the required permit(s) issued pursuant to section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, constitutes
a violation of section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a). Each day the discharges remain in place
without the required permit(s) constitutes an additional day of violation of section 301(a) of the CWA,
33 U.S.C. § 1311(a).

37. Activities to be carried out under this Consent Order are remedial, not punitive, and are
necessary to achieve the CWA’s objective “to restore and maintain the chemical, physical, and
biological integrity of the Nation’s waters,” as specified in section 101(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C.

§ 1251(a). Restoration is appropriate to address the actual and potential harm to water quality, aquatic
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habitat and wildlife habitat, as well as other functions and values, caused by PHD’s and the Gards’

unpermitted activities.

38. This Consent Order was issued after consultation and coordination with the Corps’ Omaha

District, Wyoming Regulatory Office.

VI. ORDER FOR COMPLIANCE

Based upon the foregoing FINDINGS OF FACT AND OF VIOLATION and pursuant to the
authority vested in the Administrator of the EPA pursuant to section 309(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C.
§ 1319(a), as properly delegated to the Assistant Regional Administrator of the Office of Enforcement,
Compliance and Environmental Justice, EPA Region 8§, it is hereby ORDERED:
39. Respondent shall immediately terminate any and all unauthorized discharges of dredged and fill
material, now and in the future, into waters of the United States, unless specifically authorized by the
Corps under a valid permit issued pursuant to section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, This
prohibition includes all mechanical land clearing, dredging, filling, grading, leveling, installation of
utilities, construction and any other activities that result in a discharge of dredged or fill material into
waters of the United States.
40. Respondent shall conduct restoration activities for impacts to waters of the United States
resulting from the unauthorized discharges of dredged and fill material at the Site in accordance with the
schedule and other requirements set forth in the restoration plan attached to this Consent Order as
Exhibit A (Plan), which is hereby approved by the EPA and made an enforceable part of this Consent
Order.
41. Within fourteen (14) calendar days after receipt of this Consent Order, Respondent shall submit
to the EPA the name and qualifications, including professional resume, of a consultant experienced in

wetlands restoration who will directly supervise all work performed pursuant to the Plan.
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42. All restoration activities conducted pursuant to this Consent Order and involving the use of

heavy construction equipment shall be undertaken under the direct, on-site supervision of the consultant

retained pursuant to paragraph 41, above.

43. This Consent Order is not a permit or an authorization to place or discharge dredged or fill
material in waters of the United States. Respondent shall consult with the Corps and the Wyoming
Department of Environmental Quality (WDEQ) at the addresses and telephone numbers below to
determine if any work to be performed pursuant to this Consent Order requires a permit from the Corps
under section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, or from the WDEQ under section 402 of the CWA,
33 U.S.C. § 1342. If any such permit is required, Respondent shall obtain such permit(s) and provide a
copy or copies to the EPA pursuant to paragraph 44, below, prior to initiating any work that is to be

performed pursuant to this Consent Order.

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
Wyoming Regulatory Office

2232 Dell Range Boulevard, Suite 210
Cheyenne, Wyoming 82009
Telephone: (307) 772-2300

Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality
Water Quality Division

122 West 25th Street, Herschler Building
Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002

Telephone: (307) 777-7781

44, Respondent shall submit all notifications under this Consent Order and related correspondence

to:

Monica Heimdal, 8ENF-W-WO

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 8
1595 Wynkoop Street

Denver, Colorado 80202-1129

Telephone: (303) 312-6359

Email: heimdal.monicagdepa.gov
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45. In addition to the notification requirements set forth in paragraph 43, above, after issuance of any
Corps authorization for the restoration work, Respondent shall submit all notifications and
correspondence to the Corps in accordance with the terms and conditions in the Corps permit(s).

46. Any non-compliance with the Plan, reports, specifications, schedules, permits or attachments
shall be deemed a failure to comply with this Consent Order and shall be subject to EPA enforcement.
47, Until termination of this Consent Order, the EPA and its authorized representatives and

contractors shall have the authority at all reasonable times to enter the Site to:

a. Inspect and monitor progress of the activities required by this Consent Order;
b. Inspect and monitor compliance with this Consent Order;

c. Inspect and review any records relevant to this Consent Order; and

d. Verify and evaluate data and other information submitted to the EPA.

This Consent Order shall in no way limit or otherwise affect the EPA’s authority or the authority of any
other governmental agency to enter the Site, conduct inspections, have access to records, issue notices
and orders for enforcement, compliancé or abatement purposes or monitor compliance pursuant to any
statute, regulation, permit or court order.

48. This Consent Order, or the signature pages thereof, may be executed in counterparts, each of
which shall have full force and effect as an original, including admission into evidence, and facsimile
signatures shall constitute originals for all purposes.

49. This Consent Order shall be effective upon receipt by Respondent of a fully executed copy.

50. Issuance of this Consent Order shall not be deemed an election by the United States to forego
any civil or criminal action to seek penalties, fines or other appropriate relief under the CWA for any

violation of this Consent Order or violation of the CWA from and after the effective date of this Consent

Order.
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S1. The EPA agrees to submit all notifications and correspondence for Respondent to:

James Parkman

600 Lilley Yeager Loop North

Cleveland, Texas 77328
52. Any party hereto may, by notice, change the address to which future notices shall be sent or the
identities of the persons designated to receive notices hereunder.
53. If an event causes or may cause delay in the achievement of the requirements of this Consent
Order, Respondent shall notify the EPA orally as soon as possible and in writing within ten (10) working
days from the date Respondent first knew of such event or should have known of such event by exercise
of due diligence, whichever is earlier. Respondent’s written notice shall specify the length of the
anticipated delay, the cause(s) of the delay, the measures taken or to be taken by Respondent to
minimize the delay and a timetable by which those measures will be or have been implemented.
Notification to the EPA pursuant to this paragraph of any anticipated delay, by itself, shall not excuse
the delay or the obligation of Respondent to comply with the requirements and deadlines of this Consent
Order, unless the EPA grants in writing an extension of the applicable requirement or deadline.
54, If Respondent demonstrates to the EPA’s satisfaction that the delay or anticipated delay has been
or will be entirely caused by circumstances beyond Respondent’s control (or the control of any of
Respondent’s agents) that Respondent could not have foreseen and prevented despite due diligence, and
that Respondent has taken all reasonable measures to prevent or minimize such delay, the EPA may
excuse performance or extend the time for performance of such requirement for a period not to exceed
the actual delay resulting from such circumstances. The EPA’s determination on these matters shall be
made as soon as possible, and in writing within ten (10) working days, after the receipt of Respondent’s
written notification of the event. The parties agree that changed economic circumstances shall not be
considered circumstances beyond the control of Respondent.

55.  Each party shall bear its own costs and attorney fees in connection with this matter.
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56. Respondent understands and acknowledges the following:

a. Section 309(d) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(d), as adjusted for inflation by 40 C.F.R.
part 19, authorizes civil penalties of up to $52,414 per day for each violation of an order
issued by the Administrator of the EPA under section 309(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C.

§ 1319(a).

b. Compliance with the terms and conditions of this Consent Order shall not be construed to
relieve Respondent of his obligations to comply with any applicable federal, state or local
law -~T regulation.

c. Failure by Respondent to complete the tasks described herein in the manner and time
frame specified pursuant to this Consent Order may subject Respondent to a civil action

under section 309 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319, for violation of this Consent Order.

FOR UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION AGENCY, REGION 8

4!

I\ - v
Kimberly S\Opekar
Acting Assistant Regional Administrator
Office of Enforcement, Compliance

and Environmental Justice

DATE: %'Zﬂ/%ﬂr
/.

FOR JAMES PARKMAN

BY DATE:
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Restoration Plan

Prepared for:

James Parkman
600 Lilley Yeager Loop North
Cleveland, TX 77328

River Park Subdivision 2nd Filing
Lots 21 & 22 Doc 1295464

Dubois, Fremont County, WY

April 10, 2017

Prepared by:

Water « Wetfoands « Ecoiogicel! Consuiticg
PO, 6519
Jea kson, Wyoning 83002

(307) 733-5031




March 3, 2017

Amendment to Restoration Plan for River Park Subdivision 2™ Filing, Lots 21 & 22 Doc 1295464,
(dated February 6, 2017)

The purpose of this amendment is to address concerns and additional information requested from Paige
Wolken with the US Army Corps of Engineers {USACE) in an email dated February 24, 2017 and from a
phone conversation on March 2, 2017 with Monica Heimdal with the US Environmental Protection
Agency (USEPA) regarding the Restoration Pian for River Park Subdivision, Lots 21 and 22 in Dubois, WY.
The following numbered list shows the requested information from USACE, along with our provided

information:

1. A site figure showing the number and approximate locations/lengths of monitoring transects.

Five (5) permanent line transects will be established during the first year of annual monitoring
by marking beginning and end points on the ground with rebar and recording GPS locations.
These transects will be 100 feet long and will overlay the restoration area, perpendicular to the
Wind River. Transect locations are shown in the enclosed Exhibit A. A data collection plot will
be established every 10 feet along each 100 foot transect. At each data plot, a one (1) yard
square area centered on the transect line will be established. The absolute percent cover of
vegetation, plant species present and their wetland indicator status will be recorded for each
plot. Individual plot data, and average percent cover for all plots across all transects will be
reported. Each plot center will be recorded using a GPS unit and marked on the ground with a
rebar stake to ensure that the same plot locations will be monitored annually.

2. A statement that annual monitaring reports will be provided to the Corps (in addition to the
EPA).
A copy of the annual monitoring report submitted each year to the EPA by November 30% will
also be submitted to the USACE, Wyoming Regulatory Office. This annual report will be provided
to document the success of wetland restoration and to determine if the restored wetlands meet
the established performance standards. The annual report will include findings of the field
survey, site photos, and maps showing the vegetative cover types.

3. Wetland determination forms will be completed for each monitoring transect and submitted as
part of annual monitoring reports.
Wetland determination forms for random sample points will be included with the annual

monitoring report submitted to the EPA and the USACE. One wetland sample point and wetland
determination form will be completed for each transect.

4. A wetland delineation will be completed prior to the final monitoring report to confirm that the
required wetland acreage has been successfully restored.

A complete wetland delineation will be performed after the five (5) years of annual monitoring.
This will include a map of the wetland types and acreage of these wetland types. This
delineation will help ensure that the wetland acreage required to be restored as in the
Restoration Plan has been achieved.

River Park Lots 21/22 Restoration Plan Amendment Alder Environmental, [LC
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5. It should be assumed that any reference to specific Department of the Army Nationwide Permit
numbers should generically reference Department of the Army Nationwide Permits, since it is
unknown at this point which permit will be used to authorize proposed restoration and

driveway activities on the property.

Enclosed:

Exhibit A — Map of Monitoring Transect Locations

River Park Lots 21/22 Restoration Plan Amendment Alder Environmental, LLC

March 3, 2017 Page 2 0f 2






Restoration Plan

Prepared for:
James Parkman

600 Lilley Yeager Loop North
Cleveland, TX 77328

River Park Subdivision 2nd Filing

Lots 21 & 22 Doc 1295464
Dubois, Fremont County, WY

February 6, 2017

Prepared by:

Varter o Netlonds « Ecolog cal Consult ' ng
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Professional Home Design, Inc. (Gard Enterprises), was found in violation of Section 404 of the Clean
Water Act (CWA) by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), and was issued an Administrative
Order for Compliance (AQ) [EPA Docket No. CWA-08-2011-003] for the fiil and excavation of wetlands
on two residential lots [Lots 21 and 22] (Attachment 1: Figure 1~ Figure 3 and Attachment 2).

Gard Enterprises, the seller of the property, has transferred responsibility for the restoration to James
Parkman, the prospective buyer of Lots 21 & 22. Therefore, Parkman assumes responsibility for
restoration of the property under the EPA’s Administrative Order on Consent (AOC). The purpose of this
restoration plan is to fulfilt the desires of the new landowner, James Parkman. This document, prepared
by Alder Environmental, is based off the December 2012 Restoration and Mitigation Plan and Errata

prepared by Cardno ENTRIX, cited in the references.

James Parkman is prepared to offset impacts to 0.81 acre of wetiands by a combination of direct
restoration and placement of portions of Lots 21 and 22 under a deed restriction recorded with Fremont
County. Parkman will make every effort to satisfy EPA’s AOC and to develop a restoration strategy which
will meet or exceed EPA’s requirements for wetland restoration and which will also meet the desire for
Parkman to maintain access to the building pad on Lot 20. Detalls of these restoration activities are

included in this Restoration Pian (Plan).

Once EPA has granted approval of this Plan, Parkman is prepared to obtain the necessary US Army Corps
of Engineers (Corps) Nationwide Permit 14- Linear Transportation Projects and Nationwide Permit 27-
Aquatic Habitat Restoration, Establishment, and Enhancement Activities and WY Department of
Environmental Quality (WYDEQ) stormwater and Section 402 permits, and any other necessary permits
for the restoration of wetlands and maintenance of the driveway access. Understanding that no work
within Lots 21 and 22 will be allowable prior to obtaining! necessary permits, Parkman wishes to use
this Plan as part of these future permitting activities. It is expected that this Plan, once approved, will
meet or exceed Corps expectations for wetland restoration measures required for Nationwide Permit 27
permitting, and that this plan can be used as support in the filing of future permits.

CHAPTER 1. RESPONSIBLE PARTIES

1.1. Applicant
James Parkman
600 Lilley Yeager Loop North
Cleveland, TX 77328

_t Iva Al B9 GANN
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2. Designated Agent
Brian Remlinger, Professional Wetland Scientist
Alder Environmental LLC
1130 Maple Way, Suite 1E
Jackson, WY 83001
Tel (207) 733-5031 office

CHAPTER 2. PROJECT REQUIRING RESTORATION

2.1. Location

Lots 21 and 22 (the Site) are a part of River Park Subdivision platted in 1974, located approximately
5 miles east of Dubols, Wyoming; SE X of SW % of Section 24, Township 41 North, Range 106 West,
Fremont County, Wyoming. Torrey Lake Quadrangle. Lots 21 and 22 are 1.39 acres and 2.75 acres in
size respectively totaling 4.14 acres.

2.2, Existing Site Conditions

The Site is located between the Wind River and US HWY 26/287 (Figures 1-3), and bounded by
undeveloped property to the west. The elevation is approximately 6,600 feet above mean sea level.
The Wind River is a navigable water of the U.S. and Is located east of the Site. The Wind River is a
tributary of the Big Horn River, which is a tributary to the Yellowstone River that flows into the
Missouri River, establishing the regulatory jurisdiction of the Site’s wetlands.

The Site is predominantly flat and located approximately 5 feet below the grade of Highway 26/287
and approximately 5 feet above the ordinary high water mark of the Wind River. The low Site terrain
and elevated highway suggests the Site may have been used as a borrow source for highway
construction decades ago. Access to the Site includes access via a Wyoming Department of
Transportation (WYDOT) approach fill constructed in 1983 located in the northwestermn corner of the
Site. This approach fill was previously placed by WYDOT and runs from the northwestern corner of
the Site approximately one quarter of the distance between the property boundary and the Wind

River (Attachment 3).

The Site vegetation includes narrowleaf cottonwoods (Populus angustifolia) along the Wind River
bank, sandbar willow (Salix exigua), sedges (Carex aquatilis) and rushes (Juncus balticus) along the
central portion of the site. The Site includes the presence of persistent palustrine scrub-shrub and
emergent wetlands adjacent to the Wind River on the property {see green boundary of wetlands

identified by Corps on Figure 4).

The Site hydrology is supported by a large seep originating from the highway embankment along the
western property boundary and from overland flow associated with stormwater and excess
jrrigation discharge from adjacent landowners to the north. The seep along the western boundary is
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as high as three feet above the grade of the Site, and originates from property west of the Site
where an unfined irrigation ditch Is actively used and excess irrigation water is stored during spring
and summer months. The seepage is visibly flowing during late spring through summer months,
when irrigation is flowing, and supports wetland vegetation growing along the highway
embankment (Attachment 2; Photographs 1-2), Site hydrology is aiso derived as a result of a US-
26/287 culvert discharging stormwater and excess irrigation water onto a property located north of
the Site. Presently the Site receives excess irrigation water when water is diverted from adjacent
landowners. Excess irrigation water runs into the Site from the north in the form of overland sheet
flow across the property. An objection letter addressed to Shelby G. Carison (WYDOT District
Engineer) from Craig Cooper (retired Water Quality Engineer, State of Wyoming) discussing what is
believed to be inconsistencies about previously installed culverts at the Site Is included in this report

as Attachment 4.

As a result of excess surface water received from both the seep along the western property
boundary and overland flow from the north, an eight-inch PVC drain line was Installed through the
center of the Site (Figure 4). This drain line was discovered during excavation and fill activities on
the Site and was installed by previous landowners. This drain line is believed to have been instalied

as early as the 1970s.

CHAPTER 3. DESCRIPTION OF UNAUTHORIZED ACTIVITIES

In March 2009, Gard Enterprises placed 0.68 acre of fill material into wetlands, excavated 0.13 acre
wetlands, and instailed four perforated PVC drain pipes into wetlands to support construction of two
residences on Lots 21 and 22 (Figure 4}. A summary of the unauthorized activities are detailed befow in
Table 1. This includes: placement of fill to extend the existing WYDOT approach from US-26/287 (0.12
acre driveway), placement of fill for two residences (0.40 acre pad), placement of fill between the Pad
and Driveway (0.14 acre shallow fill), placement of fill as a dirt pile {0.02 dirt plle) near the pad, and
excavation of wetland topsoll (0.13 acre excavated wetland) (Photographs 3-4; Figure 4). The total
acreage of unauthorized activities, including filled wetiands and excavated wetlands, is 0.81 acre.

Table 1. Unauthorized Activities (lllustrated in Figure 4)

Site Name Disturbance Acres
Driveway Fill 0.12
Pad Fill 0.40
Shallow Fili Fill 0.12
Dirt Pile Fill 0.02
Excavated Wetland Excavation 0.13
Total 0.81
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The fill activities assoclated with the driveway, pad, shallow fill, and dirt pile covered 0.68 acres of
wetland vegetation with between 6 and 24 inches of soil and gravel from an off-site source. Wetland
excavation occurred in a 0.13 acre area by removal of 2 to 6 inches of topsoil and vegetation.

The Site’s hydrology does not appear to be detrimentally aitered by unauthorized wetland fill and
" excavation activitles. These unauthorized activities were not conducted in such a manner to hegatively
affect the supply of water to the Site. Hydrology within the Site appears to have been only temporarily
affected by the unauthorized fill and excavation activities. Field investigations in April 28, 2010 and
September 2012, documented hydrology throughout the Site as evidenced by the presence of surface
water and persistent wetland vegetation across the site, and in some cases growing up and through the
areas which have been filled. The fill materials added are permeable, so all precipitation has continued

to percolate down to the water table.

Four pesforated four-inch PVC drain pipes were installed appraximately four feet below ground surface
within the Site to manage groundwater in preparation of residential construction. Three drain pipes
were Installed In Lots 21 and 22 to promote the stability of the residential pad and to manage surface
and subsurface flow originating from the large seep along the west side of the Site. One drain pipe was
installed along the northern boundary of the Site to control surface and subsurface water flow into the
Site from the water source located north of the Site.

in an effort to further manage surface water flow originating from the water source north of the Site,
Gard Enterprises excavated 0.13 acre of upland vegetation and soil adjacent to the Wind River (Figure
4). This activity Is not considered unauthorized, as the excavation was not within wetlands or Waters of

the US.

CHAPTER 4. EPA ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER ON CONSENT (AOC)

To satisfy this AOC request, Parkman shall have the Restoration Plan approved, and appropriate permits
obtained, prior to Initiating any further ground disturbing work within the Site which may result in the
discharge of dredged or fil! material to wetland or other waters of the US or violation of State
regulations. Upon EPA’s approval of this Plan, Parkman will consult with and permit “previously un-
authorized work” and any other proposed activities resulting in wetland disturbance through the Corps
and the WYDEQ, This would include completion of permits required for compliance with Section 404 of
the CWA or from the WDEQ, under Section 402 of the CWA. Parkman shall obtain all required permits
and provide coples to EPA prior to inftiating any work to be performed pursuant of the approved

Restoration Plan.

The Corps Wyoming Regulatory Office was consulted regarding CWA Section 404 permit pre-
construction notifications. Corps permitting includes application and completion of permits to conduct
restoration activities on the unauthorized 0.77 acres of filled and/or disturbed wetlands, maintain an
existing 0.04-acre driveway with access to the bullding pad on Lot 20, and remove the four drain lines in
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order to restore wetland hydrology. The previously verified NPs # 27 and 29 (Reference File NWQ-2009-
01064 verified on November 24, 2014) will either be revised and transferred to James Parkman, the new
owner of Lots 21 and 22, or NPs # 14 and 27 may need to be reissued if they are more applicable.

Parkman will apply for a dewatering permit and/or a stormwater permit through the WYDEQ under
section 402 of the CWA far proposed activities. If it is determined necessary, WYDEQ permitting would
also include application and completion of permits to complete the removal of the four newly installed

drain lines.

Parkman will make timely application for each permit required to implement the EPA-approved

Restoration Plan and to conduct restoration in accordance with the approved Plan, including the
schedule specified in the Plan, with ail granted permits. Coples of all granted permits, along with any
amendments will be submitted to EPA to demonstrate proof of permits recelpt prior to Initiating any

work to be done pursuant of EPA’s Order.

CHAPTER 5. RESTORATION PLAN

5.1. Restoration Overview
Restoration efforts will be conducted to ensure there will be no net loss of the wetlands exceeding 1/10
acre. This will be achieved through onsite restoration and preservation of wetlands in the form of a deed
restriction placed on portions of the property to compensate for the 0.81 acre of unauthorized impacts

to wetlands (Table 2).

Parkman will remove unauthorized fill and restore wetlands to pre-impact conditions within portions of
the driveway (0.08 acre), pad (0.40 acre), shallow fill {0.14 acre), dirt pile {0.02 acre), and excavated
wetlands (0.13 acre). A portion of the driveway with access to the bufiding pad on Lot 20 will remain
permanently fllled (0.04 acres) {See Table 2 and Figure 5). The removal of fill and wetland restoration in
the remaining areas will result in direct restoration of 0,77 acres of wetlands. Additionally, Parkman will
remove the four draln lines and restore any disturbed areas resulting from removal of the drains.

Parkman will place 1.6 acres of Lots 21 and 22 under a deed restriction recorded with Fremont County
for the preservation of wetlands and riparian habitat. This deed restriction will be preserved in
perpetuity at a 10:1 ratio for a total of 0.16 acres mitigation credit. (See Table 2, Figure 6, and

Attachment 5- Example Deed Restriction).

Parkman will conduct annual vegetation monitoring acrass the site for five years following restoration of
wetlands. Annual monitoring will include surveys to document wetland vegetation and identify
maintenance activities, which will ald the site in meeting the success criteria Identifled below.

Parkman will ensure the continued hydrologic connection to the 5ite by conducting restoration activities
in such a manner so as not to negatively affect the continued flow of water onto the Site. Removat of
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the four newly installed drain lines will help ensure hydrology is restored. Therefore, piezometers for
groundwater monitoring are not planned. Soil pits and sample points observed during monitoring events

will indicate wetland hydrology.

Table 2. Summary of Restoration

Site Name Activity Acres Ratlo Mitigation | Acres
Credit Filled

Driveway (0.12 acres) Removal of Flii/ Wetland 0.08 1:1 0.08 0.04

{0.04 acres to remain filled | Restoration

for driveway to Lot 20)

Pad {0.40 acres) Removal of Fill/ Wetland 0.40 12 0.40
Restoration

Shallow Fi}l (0.14 acres) Removal of Fill/ Wetland 0.14 1:1 0.14
Restoration

Dirt Pile (0.02 acres) Removal of Fill/ Wetland 0.02 11 0.02
Restoration

Excavated Wetland (0.13 Wetland Restoration 0.13 11 0.13

acres)

4 new drain lines Remaove drain lines and N/A
restore minor
disturbances

WETLAND LOSS -0.04 -0.04

WETLAND GAIN +0.77 +0.77

{Restoratlon)

los218 22 Deed Restriction 1.60 10:1 +0.16

TOTAL 0.89

5.2. Restoration Design
The proposed restoration area will replace the same functional values of the current wetland complex
on the 4.14 acre Site by restoring 0.77 acres of wetland (Figure 5) and by placing 1.6 acres of Lots 21 and
22 under a deed restriction (Figure 6). Successful restoration will be accomplished by maintaining
hydrology within the Site, by removal or excavation of excess material to cannect subsurface hydrology
to the surface, leveling the restored sreas the approximate original contour, seeding of approved
wetland vegetation, and planting of woody cuttings of native wetland plants.

Wetland hydrology to the restored wetland areas will be self-sustaining from existing on-site and near-
site water sources. Field visits to the site in 2010 and agaln in 2012 indicate that hydrology to the Site
does not appear to have been negatively affected by the placement of fill and wetland excavation in
2009, and will require no additional design beyond that which is already in place. Hydrology to the site is
derived as a result of the large agriculture induced seep along the western boundary of the Site, and by
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perennial flow from a culvert that runs underneath HWY 26/287 from a property north of the Site. Both
water sources are a direct result of agricultural practices in adjacent properties and appear to support
enough seasonal water flow to support wetlands on the Site. While these water sources are beyond the
control of Parkman, on-going agricultural practices in the vicinity will ensure a continuous hydrologic
subsurface connection to the restored wetlands. Also, the placement of two culverts under the
proposed driveway to Lot 20 at the pre-fill ground surface elevation are anticipated to maintain wetland

hydrotogy and surface water conveyance to Lots 21 and 22.

All four new drain lines will be removed. The three drains adjacent to the pad were identified by the EPA
as being a concern due to their potential to drain adjacent wetlands. Because they will be removed,
wetland hydrology is assumed to support sufficient hydrology to sustain wetland vegetation growth.
Two culverts will be placed under the proposed driveway to Lot 20 at the pre-fill ground surface
elevation. These culverts are anticipated to maintain wetland hydrology and surface water conveyance
to Lots 21 and 22. Therefore, no piezometers are planned for installation. Upon removal, the disturbed
area will be restored to the original contour and seeded with the approved wetland seed mix.

Restoration will be performed in areas so as not to create additional wetland impacts. The active

restoration areas will be clearly marked and construction equipment will be confined to those areas
only. Siit fencing will be installed along the boundary of wetlands and the Wind River. Construction will
begin after all sensitive areas have been fenced off to mark clearing limits and to minimize degradation
of sensitive wetland areas. Vehide parking, equipment parking, and storage will be confined to upland
areas. All equipment will be operated in upland areas outside of jurisdictional wetlands.

Removal of fill will be accomplished using light construction egulpment (bobcat or small rubber track
excavator). Fill removal and final grading will be conducted to restore the wetlands back to the
approximate original contour and to a level where the topsolil is exposed to subsurface hydrology. All
removed fill will be taken off the property and placed in upland areas. Upon reaching the desired depth,
the surface of the wetland will be re-contoured and raked to a level which dosely approximates the
surrounding terrain. Upon completion, construction activities will be followed by restoration of wetland

vegetation.

Wetland vegetation restoration will be accomplished by broadcast of a native wetland seed mixture and
by planting of woody shrub cuttings. This vegetation will be established in the restoration wetlands to
replace removed vegetation. The wetland seed mixture and woody shrub lists are identified below in
Tables 3 and 4. The quantities of woody wetland species to be planted is justified based on an
approximately 6 foot on-center spacing, which would resuit in approximately 40 square feet per shrub.
This will achieve greater than 50% shrub cover, which would qualify the area as scrub-shrub wetland.
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Table 3: Proposed Wetland Seed Mixtures and Application Rate

Common Name Sclentific Name PLS Pounds/Acne

Baltic Rush FACW Juncus bafticus 0.25
Woater sedge OBL Carex aquitilis 0.05
Field Horsetall FAC or Equisetum arvense 3.00
Rough Horsetall FACW Equisetum hyemale
Alkali Bulrush OBL Schoenoplectus maritimus 0.35
Nebraska Secige OBL Carex nebrascensis 1.00
Prairie Cordgrass OBL Spartina pectinata 3.00
Total 7.65
Table 4: Recommended Woody Wetland Species to be planted at Restoration Site

Common Name Sclentific Name # of Plantings Container Size
Golden Currant FAC Ribes aureum 80 5 gallon
Red-osier Dogwood FACW Cornus stolonifera 100 5 gallon
Narrowleaf Cottonwood FACW | Populus angustifolla 60 5gallon
River Birch FACW Betula occidentalls 40 5gallon
Sandbar Willow OBL Salix exigua 500 *whips
Total 780

Courtesy: High Mountain Nursery, Draper Utah. April 27, 2011.
*10 cubic inch tubing (1 inch wide by 10 inches tall)

5.3. Restoration Plan
Parkman has proposed diréct restoration of 0.77 acres of wetlands, placement of 1.6 acres under a deed
restriction, and permanent impacts to 0.04 acres of wetland for the driveway leading to Lot 20. This will
be conducted to offset 0.81 acres of unauthorized wetland impacts to the Site.

Parkman has proposed restoration of 0.64 acres of filled wetlands (see Figure 5). Unauthorized fill
associated with portions of the driveway, pad, shallow fill, and dirt plle will be carefully removed by
using light construction equipment. This equipment will be used for loading and transporting the
removed fill onto a truck to be taken off the property and placed in upland areas. It is estimated that
between 3 and 24 inches of fill will need to be removed to return these areas to pre-impact conditions.
Where work within wetlands is unavoidable, fill will be manually removed by raking and shoveling—
working back from the furthest point from the driveway pad. Stakes with reference elevation lines will
be Installed to monitor the removal process, and to ensure the topography Is contoured back to its final
grade (see existing and proposed elevations Sections ‘A-A and B-B’, Figure 7). After the soll has been
restored to Its original grade, a seed mixture prepared by the Granite Seed Company or Wind River Seed

Company will be used to seed this area (see Table 2).
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Parkman will restore 0.13 acres of excavated wetland by manually recontouring the area to match the
surrounding terrain. Since the removal of soil in 2009, the excavated wetland area has begun to

revegetate with wetland species {willows, sedges, rushes, and horsetail). Parkman will not add soil to
bring the excavated area to the original pre-impact contour as adding soil would Jikely reset wetland
recovery and detrimentally affect the growth of existing wetland plant species. After the excavated area
has been recontoured to match the surrounding rellef, the native wetland seed mixture will be used to

seed this area {see Table 2).

Parkman will remove the four drain lines more recently installed on Lots 21 and 22. Hydrology is
assumed to be restored from this as well. Upon removal, the disturbed area will be restored to the

original contour and seeded with the approved wetland seed mix.

The broadcast method will be used for applying wetland seed mixtures. To pratect the seeds from
predation by rodents and birds, and to increase the rate of germination, seeds will be raked into the soil
to maintain adequate contact and protective cover. Mulch in the form of broadcast straw, fiber matting,
or hydromuich will be applied to retain moisture and increase germination rates. All seed mixtures and
straw mulch will be approved as certified weed free. Seeding and stock plantings would take place
during late fall when air temperatures are low and the chance of precipitation is high. Stock cuttings will
be planted in such a way that the water table would intersect the base of the cuttings during the
growing season to ensure woody shrub survival. Success of the seeding and stock plantings would be

conducted annually as part of the Monitoring Plan.

Parkman will monitor and maintain the restoration process across the restored wetlands, and will
respond with appropriate maintenance measures in a timely manner to promote Site stabilization and
growth of wetland vegetation. These maintenance activities would include: [dentification and repair of
erosion controls by installation of silt fencing or erosion control logs; installation of fencing to protect
plants from herbivores; plant replacement; and control of weeds.

As part of the Restoration Plan, weed management will be implemented to control the spread of
noxious and invasive weeds In the restoration areas. Weedy species will be identified and documented
annually and wilt be included in the annual monitoring report. The goal of the onsite weed management
will be to malntain less than 10 percent aerial cover of noxious and invasive weeds throughout the
restoration wetland areas, while encouraging the establishment of native herbaceous and woody
wetland specles. Parkman will manage noxlous and invasive weed by conducting manual removal of
weed species and disposal of the weedy vegetative materials In an approved off-site source. While the
Site is small enough to manually manage weedy species, application of approved herbicides may be
necessary If weed management is beyond the efforts manual removal and control. If It is determined
herbicide application is necessary to control weedy species in the Site, Parkman will consuit with
regional EPA, Corps, or Wyoming Department of Agriculture staff to identify appropriate chemical

controls approved for use in jurisdictional wetlands.
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After the EPA approves the completion of all restoration responsibilities, a deed restriction will be filed
with Fremont County on the selected areas of the property depicted in Figure 6.

5.4. Restoration Goals
The goal of the Restoration Plan is to restore the functional values of wetland impacts at the Site. The
restoration goals will provide the following:

® Increase specles diversity, richness and abundance =a Flood attenuation
= Provide food for forage a Seclusion

B Increase bank stablility s Sheilter/Cover

® Increase wildlife habitat = Protection

» Limit human access to river m  General aesthetics

5.5. Monitoring Plan
5.5.1. Success Criteria and Monitoring:

The success of wetland restoration will be evaluated on an annual basis, or until the
Performance Standards have been met. This will be achleved by: documenting successful
establishment of wetland vegetation and implementation of maintenance activitles to promote
the persistence of wetland vegetation; documenting and monitoring wetland hydrology;
documenting and monitoring weedy species; and completion of annual monitoring reports.
Findings of the annual reports will be used to monitor the success of wetland restoratlon and for
the identification of additional maintenance activities necessary to promote wetland

restoration.

Annual monitoring will be conducted during the growing season for five years at all restoration
sites. An annual monitoring report will be submitted to EPA by November 30, each year. The
annual report will be provided to document the success of wetfand restoration and to
determine If the restored wetlands meet the established performance standards. The annual
report will include findings of the field survey, site photos, and maps showing the vegetative

cover types,

Successful establishment of wetland vegetation will be determined when wetland vegetation
meets the following performance standards: where more than 50 percent of the dominant plant
spedies in all wetland restoration areas will be of a facultative (FAC) or wetter indicator status,
where aerial plant cover is 80 percent or greater, and where the presence of noxious weeds is
less than 10 percent. Vegetation within the Site will be monitored by completing annual field
surveys for five years to document vegetative growth within the restored wetlands. During the
field visits, Parkman will document the dominant vegetativa spedes, identify the wetland
indicator status of each, and calculate of the average percent cover for each dominant
vegetative spedies Including noxious and invasive weeds.
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Wetland hydrology will be determined successful when the restored wetlands are inundated for
a minimum of 14 consecutive days. Hydrology within the Site will be monitored through the

wetland soil pits dug annually at the time of monitoring.

Photos will be taken of the restored areas during each monitoring period to document that the
same functional values are achieved as the existing onsite wetlands. Photos will be taken from
the same vantage point and in the same direction every year, and shall reflect findings discussed
in the annual monitoring report. When percent cover estimates are made of aeral cover,
photographs will be taken of the sampling transects.

5.5.2. Performance Standards:

To achieve sucress criteria the following must be met:

» Plant community within the restored wetlands will be dominated with native wetland
vegetation where more than 50 percent of the dominant plant species in all wetland
restoration areas will be of a facultative (FAC) or wetter indicator status.

» Achieve and maintain aerial plant cover of at [east 80 percent.

» Wetlands will be inundated for a minimum of 14 consecutive days during the growing season

in a normal rainfall year.
= Control noxious and invasive weeds In the restoration areas (less than 10 percent).

55.3. Methods:

The restoration wetland areas will be monitored annually for five years during the early summer
growing season (May to July). Monitoring will entail the evaluation of wetland vegetation by use
of line transects and by monitoring depth to ground water in the soll pits dug at the time of

monitoring.

Wetland vegetation will be monitored and documented by the establishment of three
permanent line transects across the restored and mitigation wetlands. The line transects will be
identified and staked In the Site during the first annual vegetation survey. The {ine transects will
employ the belt transect method to document plant species occurring within in the transect and
to record canopy cover as a means of caiculating aerial cover. The percent cover of wetland
species and canopy cover will be calculated within each of the transects, and recorded on data
forms. A photograph of each transect will be taken annually, as well as four additional photos.

Wetland hydrology will be monitored and documented annually for five years during peak
runoff or during times of peak agricultural water release (May to July}. Depth to ground water
will be measured annually during this period to identify depth to groundwater in the restored
wetlands and within the reference site. Depth to groundwater will be measured with a tape
measure at wetland soll pits that will be dug at the time of monitoring. Data on ground water
depth will be recorded on data forms and included in the annual menitoring report.
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5.6. Implementation Plan and Schedule:

m Permitting - Identify and obtain permits from WYDEQ prior to initizting restoration activities.
WYDEQ permits will be obtained upon approval of this Plan.

w Permitting ~ Obtain Permits from Corps and WYDOT prior to inftiating restoration activities upon
approval of this plan. Corps and WYDOT permits will be obtalned upon approval of this Plan.

m Installation of Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Silt fence and boundary Identifiers will be
Installed around construction perimeter and all restoration areas particularly adjacent to the Wind
River. Installation of silt fenice will be completed prior to inftiating restoration activities.

a Construction — Construction required to restore wetlands will be performed in accordance with
those practices and BMPs as outlined in this Plan. Construction activities will inciude fill removal
and final grading. Construction will be initiated upon completion of permitting and installation of
BMPs.

w Restoration and Seeding — Restoration, seeding, and woody stock planting will be performed as
outlined in this Plan. Wetland restoration will be Initiated upon completion of final site

preparation and grading.
» Monitoring Restoration Area — Monitoring of the restoration wetlands will be Initiated in the first

growing season after restoration has been completed. it is expected that this would inftlate in the
spring of 2017 and would be completed in 2022, or before If performance standards are met.

m Deed Restriction — The deed restriction will be recorded with fremont County as soon as
applicable. It is expected that this could be filed upon EPA’s approval of successful restoration has
been accomplished, or sooner if approved by EPA.

Scheduled activities will be inftiated no later than 60 days after EPA approves this plan, weather
permitting, or within 60 days after weather permits. Other than annual monlitoring reports, all

activities identified above will be completed sequentially in the order identified.

5.7. Contingency Plan
parkman will make timely application for each permit required to implement EPA-approved plan and to
conduct restoration in accordance with the approved plan, induding the schedule specified in the plan,
with all granted permits, Coples of all granted permits, along with any amendments will be submitted to
EPA to demonstrate proof of permits receipt prior to initiating any work to be done pursuant of EPA’s

Order.

5.8. Other Permit Conditions
5.8.1. Threatened and Endangered Species:

The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Service} list of threatened, endangered, candidate, and
proposed (TECP) spedes for Fremont County, Wyoming {updated March 2011) was reviewed
prior to conducting the field survey. Note that candidate spedes are not offered protection
under the Endangered Spedies Act (ESA}, although the Service recommends spedes protection
where possible to avold future listing of candidate species. During the Site survey, a search for
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protected species and their habitats was conducted. Search was conducted for potential raptors
nest habitat within the two iots and a 100-foot buffer of the perimeter.

No TECP listed species or their habitats were identified within the Site, or within 100 feet of the
perimeter of the site. Based on the literature reviewed and Site surveys, Lots 21 and 22 do not
have any TECP species present. No raptors nest was chserved within the lots or 100-foot buffer.

5.9. Completion of Restoration Responsibilities
5.9.1. Notification:

Upon completion of all restoration responsibilities, Parkman will send a notification of
completion to the Corps Wyoming Regulatory Office {Cheyenne, WY) and EPA Region 8 office
{Denver, CO) with submittal of final annual monitoring report.

5.9.2. EPA and Corps Confirmation:

The EPA will be responsibie to evaluate Parkman’s compliance with the Administrative Order on
Consent {AQC) and the final approved restoration plan. EPA is also responsible for determining
whether or not restoration efforts required by the AOC are successful and complete. Parkman
will also coordinate with the Corps to ensure that all requirements and/or other special
conditions of a permit have been appropriately completed. If all permits conditions have been
met, Parkman will recelve confirnation from the Corps that all requirements have been

completed as requested by the permit.
59.3. Pro nership:

The restaration site will be managed by Parkman and/or in accordance with any applicable deed
" restrictions. After EPA approves the completion of all restoration responsibiiities, part of the
restored area and the remainder of the property outside of the driveway and a reserved
building pad and driveway {ocation {approximately 1.6 acres — combination of both Lots 21 and
22) will be placed under a deed restriction and recorded with Fremont County. EPA will receive,
for comment, draft coples of the applicable deed restrictions for all areas to be protected and
preserved, as well as final executed copies, and that the deed restrictions will be recorded with

county real property records.
5.9.4. Costs:

An estimated summary of costs for all proposed restoration activitles is included
in Table S below.
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Table 5: Estimated Costs for Restoration

Task Cost
Environmental Consulting - Revise Restoration Plan, USACE $8,000
Pre-Construction Notification, Restoration Supervision

Restoration — Remaval of Fill $10,000
Seeding $4,000
Woody Stock Planting $4,550
Restoration — Monitoring for 5 years $11,000
Deed Restriction $1,500
TOTAL §39,050

Disclaimer:
Any Approval by EPA of a final restoration plan submitted on behalf of Parkman will apply only to

information that falls within the scope of the Region 8 guidelines for restoration plans. Extraneous
information or information for legal defenses that are Included in the final plan, but that are not
required in order to evaluate the plan or are beyond the scope of the restoration actlvities, will not be
considered to be part of the plan and therefore will not be evaluated or approved by EPA.

CHAPTER 6. REFERENCES

6.1. Previously Approved Plans

James, Aaron. {(December 2012). Revised Restoration and Mitigation Plan, Gard Enterprises Docket No.
CWA-08-2010-003. Cardno ENTRIX. Sait Lake City, UT.

ERRATA: Cotrections in Text and Figures in response to United States Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) January 15, 2013 Electronic Comments — Re: Druft Restoration and Mitigation Plan Gard
Enterprises Docket No. CWA-08-2010-003.
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Attachment 1 Figures
Figure 1 — Location Map
+ Figure 2 —Topographic Map
e Figure 3 —Aerial Map
e Figure 4 — Site Map of Unauthorized Actlvities and Existing Conditions
o Figure 5 —Proposed Retained Development & Wetland Restoration
e Figure 6 - Proposed Deed Restriction
o Flgure 7 —Cross-Sections

Attachment 2 Site Photographs (taken from Cardno Entrix 2012 Pian)

Attachment 3 Wyoming Department of Transportation dated April 18, 2011 (taken from Cardno Entrix
2012 Pian)

Attachment 4 Cralg Cooper’s objection to Wyoming Department of Transportation Letter dated April 18,
2011 (taken from Cardno Entrix 2012 Plan)

Attachment 5 Example Deed Restriction
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Restoration and Mitigation Plan

Wyoming

1T
AT .
QBky Depariment of Transportation 7S
T Vvt 2 57 high quasly, wnk ollicemtt Y3 amiin Spmn N e
vvvvv .J.l.vﬂml
Phose (75883500 Bosh Wyomim 8410 FAX AOTINEENE
Agd (8,20
M. Craig Coopex
Cooper Consulting, 11
627 Majox Avenmc
Riverion, WY 12501
Re-  Lot2] & 22, River Park Sacond Filie -
Fremant County 'Wyoming
Dear Mr. Cooper:
This Is in respomse to your March 21,2011 fevser regniisrg wellands and poasible mitygation effonts as velstod to
the property nowed shove.
WYDOT s highway project has camsed extensive wetlnd impacts slong he Togwotee Pass Oonidor :ad we
il be bedunced for mitigation. E.l&lurl-!lul&aig shoae and it S__
elvnen_nlusg.m‘!a cxedit for what fs comstructed. Simller to your singion, WYDOT
in responsible 10 mitigate st & bighcr catio then 1.1 depeodent an type of wettand sad tocation, 3 Bading
%ﬁéigsiiwﬁgiégigw

" 1 bave reviewed the 1

983, F-000-2(32), as~oometructed project plams snd the 1938, {59G. m-construcied plans

for the avew of the subdivided lots 21 & 22 a3 refixenced sbove. WYDOT agplaced the two historic culven 1
ilisilﬂt 1963 with the same: size culvest and in the smme locstion as they wers in
# the original roadvmy construction in 1938, The eMhsent fiams the culvert loc Ear-nlt«lnu.nﬂu_lln.u
jnto & vacent bot.  [he flow {s restricied from ontering your cllent™S Woperty by the approach B iio e it 21

N property line wiech extends alnont fo the river. The effiucat fron fhe cutvert locuicd st e 2axt end of lot 22

' , ._e_-nw._lc igiilia!!ﬁ&l s property.

.,

o-lgl-l-l new culvest was placed during the 1983 constnuction neer the wost end of your client’s
propevty  This wes oot deploted fo ?%E!i!ﬂ!&-'tl&&n
bighway tight-of-way for the entire Jength of lots 21 & 22, in sn stiexapt (0 Joouis the refivonced pipe. We were
amable 1o locaso an addisional culvert cromsing. Elﬁgtiﬂlﬁqglﬁg
bapamocky bebavior, evidenco of lang term molstare which is leaching lnfo our toadway 6il frore springs or
grotmdwaics, The ares of your client’s propesty had swerre, typical wetiand.

The wetiand map Som the US Fish & Wildlife Service imndicates two difYerent types of wetland presest on Iots
1nan i’%sﬁ&i’ggl-ﬂi { your client's peoperty

olang the river’s edge, and in some cascs located mmch fsrther fiosu (e highvay.

Canino ENTRIX
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Lot 21 & 27, River Park Second { iling
April 18, 2011
Poge 2

Based on the above iefoomstion, WYDOT docs not have suy wetind mudigation acage availsble to shere and
1 believe thet the svetlands prasent on your climst’s property arc natunally occtrring besed oo the siver’s foction
and avsilsble gromsd vaster and not rolated 10 the highvway culverts.

1 sysspathize with your cHest’s siezstion. For auny years, we bavo bid to work through the complications
asociated with wetland impects camsed by highveay jeojocts st the diffionlty fervotvad in lacating sccoptable
mirigation sites, Flease il five t0 durect auy other questions qo Gris inue to mewt (307) 568-3400.

Respertfidly,
§ S wleko

Candno ENTRIX
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ATTACHMENT 4

Craig Cooper objection to Wyoming Department of Transportation Letter
Dated April 18 2011

Docember 2012 Cardno ENTRIX
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May 15, 2011

Cratyg Cooper

Cooper Consulting, LLC
1627 Major Ave.
Riverton, WY 82501

Shelby G. Carlson
WYDOT District Engineer
£.0. Box 461

Basin, WY 52410

Dear Shelby:

Thank you for your letter of April 18, 2011 responding to mine of March 21, 2011. Obviously,
my dients were disappointed that WYDOT feels no responsibiiity in this matter. There were
some things in your letter that we felt were inconsistent with what we understand sbout the

situation, and want to go on record in that regard.

Frst, in my initial discussion and review of the 1983 as-comstructed plans with Mr.
Scheidemantel, he advised and gave me a copy of the plans that showed there were two
previously-existing culverts in the project area—one five lots upstream from my clients
property near where Red Hill Road connects to Highway 26, and the other near the east end of
Lot 22. Both of these culveris were replaced during that job. He said the culvert of concern in
this matter, which Is between those two and empties onto Lot 20, the lot just west of my
client’s property, was not there prior to the 1983 construction job, and was pleced new during
that project. Youws letter indicates the oppasite. The fousth pasagraph of your letter says you
“walked the rigit-of-way the entire length of lots 21 & 22 in an attempt to bocate the
referenced pipe.” You will note that my letter never mentions a pipe on lots 21 or 22—it says
the pipe i "a short distance west of my cients’ west property boundary.” You will also note
that my letter recognized we weren't giving you detalled specifics of our concerns at this time
pending your initis] response. if we had been invited on the site visi, we could have shown you

what we were talking about.

Second, your letter says that the flow from that culvert (the one that empties onto Lot 20) "is
restricted from entering your cllent’s praperty by the approach fil on the Lot 21 property ine
which extends aimost to the river.,” This is absolutely incorrect. Had you been on those
progerties iast summer, you would have seen expansive amounts of water emerging from that
culvert, sunning north slong the west side of the spproach fill, going around its north end and
flooding east across both Lots 20 and 21. My cllents have numerous photographs of that

ocanrence should you care to see them.

Third, we were not really asking for your opinlon as to whethes you thought my dients’
property Is “wetland” or not. We were asking if you felt yous agenicy had any responsibitity for

Candno ENTRIX
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the discharge from that culvert. There is an extensive history of activity on these properties
which argues with the US Fish & Wildlife Service’s delineations, and we reject your cussory
opinion that my ciients’ property is “mature, typical wetland” that is “natursfly occurving.” We
doubt if your research in answering our letter included dedving into that history and thus feel
your assessment was hasty in that regard. Thank you.

Sincerely yours,

December 2012 Cardno ENTRIX
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DECLARATION OF COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE
JAMES PARKMAN / RIVER PARK SUBDIVISION LOTS 21 & 22
RESTORATION & PRESERVATION

TIHIS DECLARATION is made to be effective this day of 2017, by
JAMES PARKMAN, 600 Lilley Yeager Loop North, Cleveland, Texas 77328 ("Declarant™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Declarant is the owner of real property that contains a -acre site
described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein (the "Site™);

WHEREAS, Declarant has designated the Site for restoration and preservation purposes
in accordance with special conditions of Administrative Order on Consent (Order), as defined in
a letter from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 8 ("EPA") to Declarant dated

,2017;

WHEREAS, Declarant desires and intends to provide for the perpetual protection and
conservation of the wetland and/or waterway functions and values of the Site and for
management of the Site and improvements thereon, and to this end desires to subject the Site to
the covenants, restrictions, access easement, and other encaumbrances hereinafter set forth, each

and all of which is and are for the benefit of the Site; and

WHEREAS, the EPA has accepted the James Parkman / River Park Subdivision Lots 21
& 22 Restoration Plan for the Site dated ,2017.

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

1.1  "Declaration™ shall mean the covenants, restrictions, access easement, and all
other provisions set forth in this Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions.

1.2  "Declarant" shall mean and refer to James Parkman, its successors or assigns.
1.3  "EPA" shall mean the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 8.

1.4  "Permits" shall mean Department of the Army Nationwide Permits, and all related
documents, including the Restoration Plan approved by the EPA defined above in the Recitals,

that formally establishes the restoration and preservation site and stipulates terms and conditions
of its construction, operation and long- term management as filed by the EPA under Order No.

1.5  "Site" shall mean and refer to all real property subject to this Declaration, as more

DECLARATIOR OF COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE
JAMES PARKMAN / RIVER PARK SUBRIVISION LOTS 21 & 22
RESTORATION & PRESERVATION
PAGE 1 OF 4



particularly set forth in Exhibit A.

ARTICLE I
PROPERTY SUBJECT TO THIS DECLARATION

The real property where the Site is located shall be held, transferred, sold, conveyed, and
occupied subject to this Declaration. The Site is in Fremont County, Wyoming and is more
particularly described in Exhibit A.

ARTICLE II
DECLARANT REPRESENTATIONS

Declarant represents and warrants that after reasonable investigation, and to the best of its
knowledge, that no hazardous materials or contaminants are present that conflict with the
conservation purposes intended; the Site is in compliance with all federal, state, and local laws,
regulations, and permits; and there is no pending litigation affecting, involving, or relating to the
Site that would conflict with the intended conservation use. Declarant affirms that the Site is
free and clear of any and all liens, claims, restrictions, easements, and encumbrances which
would interfere with the ability to protect and conserve the Site with the exception of existing
Wyoming Game and Fish Commission fishing access and river bed and bank improvement
casement and corrective deed of easement recorded in 1964 and presented in Exhibit B.

ARTICLE IV
GENERAL DECLARATION

Declarant, in order to discharge in part its obligations under the Permits declares that the
Site shall be held, transferred, sold, conveyed, and occupied subject to the covenants,
restrictions, access easement, and other encumbrances hereinafter set forth in this Declaration, in
order that it shall remain substantially in its restored, enhanced, preserved, open and natural
condition, in perpetuity. The terms and conditions of this Declaration of Covenants and
Restrictions shall be both implicitly and explicitly included in anmy subsequent transfer,
conveyance, or encumbrance affecting all or any part of the Site. These restrictions cannot be
released or modified unless authorized in writing by the EPA. Any amendments shall be signed
by the EPA and shall be recorded in the official records of the county in which the Site is

located.
ARTICLE V

USE RESTRICTIONS, MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES,
AND RESERVED RIGHTS

Declarant and all users of the Site are subject to any and all easements, covenants and
restrictions of record.

A. USE RESTRICTIONS. Except as necessary fo conduct, remediate or maintain
the restoration site consistent with the Permits, the actions encompassed as prohibited by this

covenant shall include:

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE
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1. There shall be no disturbance or change in the natural habitat of the Site
unless it is consistent with the federal and other regulations including existing or future
federal Clean Water Act rcgulations and promotes wetland restoration goals and

objectives.

2. There shall be no filling, excavating, dredging, mining, or drilling; no
removal of topsoil, sand, gravel, rock minerals, or other materials, nor any storage or
dumping of ashes, trash, garbage, or of any other materials; and no changing of the
topography of the land of the Site in any manner after existing and restored wetlands, as
shown by the Department of Army wetland boundary in Bxhibit A, are established unless

approved in writing by the EPA.

3. There shall be no construction or placing of buildings, mobile homes,
advertising signs, billboards, or other advertising material, vehicles, or other structures on

the Site.

4. There shall be no legal or de facto division, subdivision, or partitioning of
the Site.

5. Use of motorized off-road vehicles to traverse the Site for purposes other
than bank stabilization and Wyoming Game and Fish bed and bank improvements is

prohibited.

B. MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES. Declarant will take action to prevent
the unlawful entry and trespass by persons whose activities may degrade or harm the restoration
purposes of the Site or that are otherwise inconsistent with this Declaration.

C. RESERVED RIGHTS. Declarant reserves all other rights accruing from its
ownership of the Site, including but not limited to the exclusive possession of the Site; the right
to transfer or assign their interest in the same; the right to take action necessary to prevent
erosion on the Site; the right to protect the Site from losing its wetland or waterway fimctions
and values; the right to take action necessary to protect public health or safety; the right to use
motorized maintenance vehicles to traverse the Site; and the right to use the Site in any manner
not prohibited by this Declaration and which would not defeat or diminish the conservation

purpose of this Declaration.

Declarant reserves the right to comply with the Wyoming Game and Fish easement as presented
in Exhibit B and recorded at Fremont County, WY in 1964.

Declarant reserves the right to maintain existing functions of the property, to fish, to
recreate, and to hunt, to the extent that the reserved rights are comsistent with terms and

conditions enumerated in the EPA Order.
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ARTICLE VI
GENERAL PROVISIONS

A NOTICE. The EPA shall be provided with a 60-day advance written notice of
any legal action concerning this Declaration, or of any action to extinguish, void, or modify this
Declaration, in whole or in part. The restrictive covenants herein are intended to survive
foreclosure, tax sales, bankruptcy proceedings, zoning changes, adverse possession,
abandonment, condemnation, and similar doctrines or judgments affecting the Site. A copy of
this recorded document shall accompany said notice.

B. VALIDITY. If any provision of this Declaration, or the application thereof to any
person or circumstance, is found to be invalid, the remainder of the provisions of this
Declaration, or the application of such provisions to persons or circumstances other thaa those as
to which it is found to be invalid, as the case may be, shall not be affected thereby.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, being Declarant herein, has executed this

instrument this day of 52017,
JAMES PARKMAN
BY:
JAMES PARKMAN
STATE OF )
) SS.
COUNTY OF )
ACKNOWLEDGED before me on this, the day of , 2017 by
James Parkman.
WITNESS my hand and official seal.
NOTARY PUBLIC
My Commission expires:
Attachments:

Exhibit A — Site Map
Exhibit B — 1964 Wyoming Game and Fish Commission Easement
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grant ‘unto’ the Sta%e of Wyoming Gamo an d Fish Commiséion.veranﬁeé, o

" IR ., ‘ll

: for the use of-the public,the following rlghtsrand privileqeq. ,‘i

o-“it H K - > ;o ’. “ Lopg? ‘,'.

1. A perhanent easement.and aocess for public fishing "

‘in and to the Big Wind River and Jakey s Fork insofar as they
traverse the following described 1ands. to-wit‘ 5‘ :

T. ‘41 N,, R, 106 W..of thd:6th P, M.' Eremont
County, WYOMIDQ. Lt . St

Séction 15._ s&smdﬁ russw e
- et
: ¢ Exce t7a one acre traot of land in the:
¢ 5 and NW4SW4 more: particularly
degcribed ag follows: Beginhning at
. Cornexr No. 1. which point is located .

-S, 87906' E,' 1,007.7 feet from the Wost
~%.section corfier' of said. Sec. 15, thence
N, 3°)2' E, 290.8 feet to Cornér No. 2
- thence S, 830517 £, 150, O'feet to Corner’
No. -3; thence.s. 3012 W, 290.8 feet to

Cozrer No. 4;.thence N. 83951' W, 150.0 .

feet, more or’less, to Co:ner No. 1, thé

) point of beg:.hning. A, PR
Section 23: SEKNEM ‘that part of the SKHNE% lyinq .

South of the Big Wind River . -

Section 24: svk,;. SWANWY;
Section 25: NKNE%

Said easenent shall extend from midstream on each of said strohms~

in both dlrections to a point “fifty (50) feet above and beyond
the high water line on each side of boih pf said streams 1nsofar
as said streams traverse and are looated in the above descrlbed
portion of Section 15, T, 41 N.. R. 106 w. 6th P. M.. Fremont
Coynty, Wyomirg, the ss%nﬂé of Secf.:.on 23, T. 41 N.. R. 106.

W, 6th P.M., Fremont County. Wyoming. the SHM and the Sﬂ%NI&

of Sec; 24, T 41 N.. R.‘106 W 6th P M.. Fremont County,‘Wyomzng
- and the N!QNB’ of Sec'tion '25. T, a1 N.. n. 106 w,*bf the 6th P.M.,”’

=

- -3 .
. Viee
e B

A‘,\
‘t

= —q.;..},h‘a;. ”‘7’* ""‘""" i p:’,;:".'
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: ticularly descrlbed as follows< Beg1nn1ng at a point on the .

‘the south right—of*way line of u S.sl-llghway 0874 d:.stance of
_76.8 feet, more or less- thence S 60°15"W. 3 d1stance of 141 8 .

. more 0% - lese~'thence N, 30° e E..e d tance of 135 00 feet, niore

‘ox less, to the p01nt of beglnnlng. ,Sa;d parCel conta1ns 0. 33

';larly descrlbed as.follows' Begxnn;ng &t a _point which. bears

'fa dlstance of 27.9 feet.,more or less-:thence.s.~88°44' E. a

Fremont County, Wyoﬁing.'Said ééeeméntlehall‘ howeve:. entend

from midstream of the Big Wind Hlver outwa:d to a point, flfty -

" (50) feet above and’ beyond the high water 11ne én the south

side of said river only insofar as said river traverses and’
is locatad in the SWVNEV of Sectidn 23, T. a1 N.. ﬁ 106" W
of the 6th P, M., Fremont County, Wyoming. .
2, A permanent easement for public parklng in.and to “.
the following-described aveas, to-wit" ‘;".
(a) A parcel of land in Section 15, T. 41 N., R.
106 W., 6th P M.. Fremont Cqunty. wyomxng,,and belng more pac=

south rlghtrofrway }ine of. v, S HighWay 287 ‘which bears . 60°
227 W. a distance of 1627 7 feet, more or lees. from the NW
corner of the SW%SEV of - Sectlon 15 thence N 61° 29' w along

feet, more orxlese,,thence S. 55 59'“E. a dietance nf 147 50. feet.

] .,)

aoyes, more or: less. f}' e BRI .
' v

‘”; : (b) - A parcel of . land 1n Section 24, T. 41 N.. R.

106 Wy, 6th P M.q Fremont Gounty. Wyomlng, being more partlcu—

5.° 45°18' E. a dlstance of 1236 58 feet..mbre or leee. from

e, L

the west one quarter cornernof Sectlod 24, jhence S. 17° 34 ' E

distance of 157 6'feet, ore or, ess;

l‘-..

qlstance of 122 0 feet. mare d‘
dlstaﬂna of 133 3 t'eet .

1" u '-'
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=]

-center llne' begihning at -8 p01nt whiéh bears S 45 18' By ': ,;f
'_;dzstance of 11236, 58° feet. more o less“

’ sary. foot br;dges of reasonable wldth and design across the *

'Blg Wind River ‘and Jakey .s Fork.

"no way harm, endanger or’ interfere with the fishery on said

'Sa1d covenant to xrun w1th the 1and to be’ binding on subsequent

_sald lands are “free {rom any encumbrances of whatever nature as-

0 the‘follbwiﬁg degcr;hed':' h
!

Ry

from the weet one~quarte f;'

-,,corner of Seqt;on 24, thence S. 72° 6'3w. a distance of 268 Od . L

fEet, more or Ieés, to;th north right-of~hay 11ne of U Sx.H1gh—"‘
way.287. Said right~of—way contalns‘O ;025 acres, mOre or'le;s.' o
., I

'.> The rlght of Grantee to improve the beds and banks.

:nof the Big Wind River'and Jakey s Fork as a fishery bytconstruct~

ing cribs, squares. triangles, ‘of such other devlces as may be

DT

‘de51red by Grantee for purpoees of- creating holes. eddles, and

shadlngs at such places as may- hereafter be d951red by Grantee.

5.' The . rlght of the Grantee.te construct, where naces-

'.

N Grantors do . hereby agree and' covanant to restrict and
control the utllizatlon of- all herbiq1des. 1nsect1c1des, or

other chemicals on said premlses so thet their use will. in.

lands and that 1n no event w1ll any such herbicides, ;nséctlcides,
ox other chemicals be used on the above-descr;bed premlses | -

1 -.l‘ .

unless perm1551on in wr1t1ng be first secured from Grantee.

grantees, lessees, helrs or devisees.
Grantors - hereby warrenting to sald grantee that they’
are fully seized in fee of all lands- descrlbed herein and that

may operate to termlnate or 1nterfere W1th any of- the rlghts'

and 1nterests herein granted.-




5"1.( "-'..'-f. I

-4
o .} r
L,‘-)..,....a..,.,.; Jatidr., ,L.‘-.n ;

.o -

." . ) .
Hereby releasing and waiving ahy and all rights under and
B ) X . .
by virtue of the.homestead exemption laws insofar as they may
effect the rlghts and interests herein granted.

K

Dated this, ) Z day of- : 1964,

Egeodor Blehm

STATE OF WYOMING,
COUNTY OF FREMONT

on this _¢r 'day of gﬂgmﬁ iy 1964, before -

me personally apﬁeared Theoddr Blehm and Rennelta Blehm, husband

,.and wife; to me known to be the persons- -described in‘and who
executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged' that they
executed the same as their free actrand deed,

otary Pu

;si'on expires: _Sa?zl..ﬁkx_lis.s’—




; Theodor‘and Rennel‘ta Blehm, ”husband and wife, of Dubois,
Fremont County.‘wYoming,-Grantors. for and in eonsideration of
Teh dollars ($10 00) and other good and valuable con51deration.

' in'hand pald, recaipt of whioh is hereby acknowledged, do hereby
grant ‘tinte the Sta&e of | Wyom;ng Game and Fish Commlssion, Grantee.

for tha use of the public the following rights and pt;vxleges.

to-—w:.t. o B

1o A permanent easement and aceess for public Fxshing
in ghd to the Big wind Rlver and Jakey & Fork insofnr as they
traverse the follow1ng descrlbed lands, to-hit'

T. 41 N,, R, 106 W, of tha 6th b.M,, Fremont
T County, WYOmlngu.

Section 15: SKNWY, N!Q:M

Except a one acre tract of land in the
SWANWY and NW4SW4 more particularly
described as follows: Beg1nn1ng at
Corner No, 1, which point is located
s, 87°06! . 1,007.7 feet from the West.
% section corner of -said Sec, 15, theace
Nr 3%12' E, 290.8 feet to Corner.No, 2;
thence §, 83951' 'E, 150,D feet to Corner
No, 3; ‘thence S, 3019' W, 290,8 fest to
* Corner No. 4; thence N. 839517 W, 150,0
feet, more ar less, to Corner No. 1, the
point of beginning,

Seetion 23: SE/NH that part of the SHhNEf lying
South of the Big Wind River, )

Sectinn 24: SW4; SWANW4
Section 25: NWNEH4

Said easement shall extend_from midstream on each of sald sireams
in both directions to a point fifty (50) feet above and beyond
the h1gh water line on each 51de of both of sald stieams insofar
'as said streams traverse and are looated ln the above descrlbed
.portion of Sectioq 15, T.'41.N.. K. 106 W, '6th P.M., lremonL
County, Wyoming, the SE4R4 of Séction 23, T. 41 N., R. 106

W. 6th P.M., Fremont County, Wyoming, the SW4 and the SW{NW4

of Sec. 24,:T. 41 N,, R, 106 W, 6th P.M,, .Fremont County, Wyoming
and the NNEYi of Section 25, T. 4L N., R..106 W. of the Gth P.M.,
Assruc;j
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Fremont County, Wynming. Said easement shall, however, extend
from midstream of the, Big Wind River outward, to a. point fifty
{s0) feet above: and beyond the hlgh water 11ne on the south
side of said river only 1nsofar as said rivés traverses and

is located in the swVNE% of cection 23, "T. .4 N., K 106 W.

of the 6th P. M.. Fremont County.‘Wyominq. . .

2. KA permanent easement for public parking in and to

the following—described areas; to-wits s

(a) A parcel of land, ‘in Sect1on ia. T. 41 N.. R. "’

106 W., 6th P, M., ‘Fremont County, Wyoming, and being moxre par—

ticularly described as follows? .Beginning at a point 6n the-
south right-of-way line of U.,S, Highway 287 nhieh bears N. 60°
22' W, a distance of 1627'; feat, more br"iesb. from the NW
corner of the SW4SE4 of Section 15; thence N, 61° 29"W.,along
the south right-of-way line of U,S.: nghway 287 a d1stanCe of .
76.8 feet, more or less; thenca s, 60°15' W. a distance of 141.8
feet, more or less; thence $. 55959". E. a distance of 147. 50 feat.

!

more or less; thence N. 30° 19' E., a dietanoe of 135 00 féet. more

or less, to the p01nt of beginning. Said parcel contains 0 33 '
[ ...;.;,,.:' . |_r .-.““" o,

acres, more or less. ! ks . - £ . .

'
b [

s, ﬂ (b) A parcel of land in §ection 24. T, 4i N., R,
106 W., 6th P M.,-Fremont Countv. WYOming, beinq more particu-
larly described as follows: Beginning at a point which‘bears
S, 4B°18' i. 3 distance of 1236 58 feet. moxe ok less,.from L
the west one quarten oorher offSectlon 24- thence 's, l7° 3a' E

Lt \I -
.,a distance of 27 9 feet. moére on, lassx thenca S 88°44' E, at -

e s

distance uf 157 6 feet. moreﬂbé less;'thence N. w24°56' W. a

. distance of &22 0. feet.‘mote{or less~ thence S.*72°36‘ Wia

S A, T AR -v',;. PO

. dietance of 133 3 feet. more~b£*less‘pthenae S si7 34' ﬁ a g .

i»r Tt B e

distance?bfu42.6 feet; : he oint‘of,beginning.

'Said'parcelhcontgins 0.3 ) prtlé}s, together with the

||’ ey

- * . - 3 . ¢ ":' » A

: rightkof thd.ﬁrantée,to ogt' “saddlpatking'rs with‘open-pole' ;1;.,

$.5, 0 c’::g‘_,\ . a e e A
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1»' o,
ol}bwin
‘3 450.18' E

d;stance of 1236 58 feet, mor or.less,hfromxtha west one;quarthr
cbrner of Section 24;§thence- .u72 067" W;vq dlstance‘of 268 00 _ K

‘hl-

: feet. more 6r less, to the north rlght-of-way line of u, S ngh—

way 287. Saiq right of—way contains 0 025 acres. more or less,
fogether thh raght of Grantee to construct or reconstruct said
-accees as desired and to thereafter malntaih and rapdir the same.
4.» The rightvof Granteé to 1mprove the beds’- and banks
of the Big‘Wind Rrver and Jakey s Fork as a fishery by construct-
1ng cribs, squares. trdangles. or such pther devices as may be
de51red hy Grantee for purposes of creating-holes, eddles. and
?shad1ngs fat such places as may hereafter be. desired hy Grantee.

V.ot

l'}ﬁi 6. The rlght of fhe Grantee o éonatruct, where heces~"

sary, foot br1dges of réasonable wldthrand design:across the kid
Big Wind River and Jakey 5 Fork. - ‘. BT '?'
. Grantors do.hereby agree ‘and cbyenadt'to restrict.and:'
contrél the utilization of all herbicides, insecticidea; or
other chemicals on said premlses so that ~their use w111 in
no.way harm, endanger or: 1nterfere with the fxshery on said. :
lands and. that-in no event will any such herb1c1des. 1nsectlcides.
_or other chemicals ‘be used on the aboue~described prem1ses .
unless perm:ssion 1n writing be first, secured from Grantee.
"Said covenant -to run-with the land to be b1nd1ng on subsequent
grantees. lessees, heirs or dev1sees.

Grantors hereby warranting to said grantee that they
.are fully seized in fee of all lands descrzbed herein and that .
‘said 1ands are free froﬁ any encumbrances of whatever nature as
may’ operate to termlnate or interfere w1th any of the rlghts

and interests here1n granted B o *f
L Coe 1t . .

Fevr ., L
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Hereby releasmg and waiving ahy and all rights under,
and by virtue of the homestead exemption laws insofar as they
may effect the r:.ghts and :.nterests herein granted.

This deed is made =to correct any and all defects in.a

certain deed’of easement executed by the grantors herein

named on March l.l. 1964 which deed was recorded at Page 31

of Book 58 of Misc., Fremont County,Records on March ‘16, 1964,

' Dated'this * Zd +day of __%‘A._b - - }964.

-'"4: AR ) '%ﬁlehm .
. %

STATE OF WYOMING
. . ) SS
COUNTY OF 'FREMONT . .
On this i day of ; ¢ : s 1964, before

me personally appeared Theodor Blehm and ﬂennelta Blehm. husband

- “

and wife, 1:6 me known to be. the persons deecr;)lhed in énd who t,
LS 21
~x‘5k&uted the foregoing instrument. and acknowledged *that they
'»M
f’?«: pmguteq + the same as their free act and deed






